IN THE SUPREME COURT **OF THE** STATE OF CALIFORNIA

BERKELEY HILLSIDE PRESERVATION, ET AL. Petitioners and Appellants,

SUPREME COURT FILED

JUL 27 2012

٧.

Frank A. McGuire Clerk

CITY OF BERKELEY, ET AL. Respondents.

Deputy

MITCHELL D. KAPOR AND FREADA KAPOR-KLEIN Respondents and Real Parties in Interest.

After a Published Decision by The Court of Appeal First Appellate District, Division Four Civil Case No. A131254

After an Appeal From The Superior Court of Alameda County Case No. RG10517314 Honorable FRANK ROESCH

RESPONDENTS AND REAL PARTIES IN INTEREST'S **OPENING BRIEF ON THE MERITS**

MEYERS, NAVE, RIBACK, SILVER &

WILSON

Amrit S. Kulkarni (SBN: 202786)

ISSUES PRESENTED

- 1. For a project that is categorically exempt from review under the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), does the unusual circumstances exception to the exemption in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2(c)² require both a finding that there is a reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect *and* a finding that the potentially significant effect is due to "unusual circumstances"?
- 2. What is the appropriate standard of review for whether the unusual circumstances exception to a categorical exemption applies?
- 3. When determining whether the unusual circumstances exception applies, must a public agency consider alleged effects of activities that are not included in the project as proposed and approved?
- 4. In determining whether there are unusual circumstances relating to a project, may a court consider the particular neighborhood in which it is proposed to be located or should it be judged relative to a "typical exempt project" statewide?
- 5. Does evidence of a potential adverse impact of the existing environment on the project constitute evidence of potentially significant "environmental impacts" that require review under CEQA?
- 6. After setting aside an agency's finding that a project is categorically exempt from CEQA, may a court order the agency to prepare

¹ All references to "CEQA" are to Public Resources Code § 21000 *et seq*. Unless otherwise indicated, all further statutory references are to the Public Resources Code.

² All references to "CEQA Guidelines" or "Guidelines" are to California Code of Regulations Title 14.

an EIR instead of ordering the agency to exercise its discretion to determine how to comply with CEQA in light of the court's opinion?

INTRODUCTION

Forty years ago, this Court issued its landmark decision in *Friends of Mammoth v. Board of Supervisors* (1972) 8 Cal.3d 247, holding that CEQA applies to private projects being approved by a public agency. In that case, the Court established that the foremost principle in interpreting CEQA is that "the Legislature intended [CEQA] to be interpreted in such a manner as to afford the fullest possible protection to the environment within the reasonable scope of the statutory language." (*Id.* at 259.) In that same case, however, this Court also stated that:

[C]ommon sense tells us that the majority of private projects for which a government permit or similar entitlement is necessary are minor in scope -- e.g., relating only to the construction, improvement, or operation of an individual dwelling or small business -- and hence, in the absence of unusual circumstances, have little or no effect on the public environment. Such projects, accordingly, may be approved exactly as before the enactment of the [C]EQA. (*Id.* at 272, emphasis added.)

Three months later, and in direct response to this Court's decision, the Legislature adopted a comprehensive amendment to CEQA. That amendment made plain that the purpose of CEQA is to protect the environment, in a way that would not cause needless time and expense. That amendment included a directive to the Resources Agency to identify and determine classes of projects that do not have a significant effect on the environment and are exempt from CEQA. Over the years, the Resources Agency adopted 33 so-called "categorical exemptions" from CEQA. Activities so exempted include an addition to schools of up to ten classrooms, construction of four new commercial buildings of up to 10,000

square feet in urban areas, construction of single-family houses and accessory structures such as pools, garages, and fences.

The Resources Agency also adopted several exceptions to the exemptions. At issue in this case is the "unusual circumstances" exception, which mirrors this Court's language in *Friends of Mammoth* and provides that a categorical exemption shall not be used for a project where there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment "due to unusual circumstances." (Guidelines § 15300.2(c).)

In this case, the City of Berkeley ("City") approved an application by Mitchell Kapor and Freada Kapor-Klein (the "Kapors") to build a single-family home. The City found the project exempt from CEQA under the categorical exemptions for construction of small structures and urban in-fill projects. In so finding, the City rejected the project opponents' opinion that significant construction fill would be required to construct the project because it was *not proposed* by the Kapors and, therefore, *not approved by the City*. The trial court upheld the City's decision, holding that evidence of a potentially significant impact was insufficient to preclude use of a categorical exemption unless the alleged impact was due to "unusual circumstances". The Appellate Court reversed, finding that evidence of a potentially significant impact is *itself* an unusual circumstance which precludes reliance on a categorical exemption.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The first issue raised by this case is whether use of a categorical exemption is precluded *whenever* the possibility of significant impacts is demonstrated, regardless of whether those impacts are related to circumstances which are "unusual" for the exempted category. Until this case, all courts addressing this issue have conducted the two-part inquiry employed by the trial court based upon the plain language of the unusual circumstances exception. These cases all have interpreted the exception as

requiring both a finding that there is a reasonable possibility of a significant environmental effect and a finding that the alleged effect is due to unusual circumstances with regard to the exempt category of projects. The Court of Appeal's Opinion, that allegations of any significant impacts are per se unusual circumstances that preclude application of a categorical exemption and obviate the need for the second finding, contradicts this long line of established precedent.

The Court of Appeal's holding is also flatly inconsistent with CEQA, the Legislature's intent and the purposes of CEQA. In response to this Court's decision in *Friends of Mammoth*, the Legislature directed the Resources Agency to identify and determine classes of projects that do not have a significant effect on the environment and are exempt from CEQA. In doing so, the Legislature intended these exemptions to be bright-line, categorical rules that would streamline review of routine and minor projects that occur throughout the State.

The Legislature did not direct or intend that agencies and courts would revisit the question of whether activities falling within the exempted classes of projects will have a "significant effect on the environment." The Resources Agency has already answered that question in the negative by promulgating the categorical exemptions. Rather, the unusual circumstances exception is designed to provide for further review of projects when the physical impacts of the project are *atypical* of the exempt category and are potentially significant. This exception is clearly authorized and consistent with the Legislature's directive and intent.

The Court of Appeal's new rule violates the Legislature's directive because it would eviscerate the very concept of categorical exemptions. If "unusual circumstances" is read out of the exception, as the Court of Appeal has done, then the Legislature's authorization would look like this: Identify a class of projects that do not have a significant effect on the

environment and are exempt from CEQA, except where an individual project within that class has a significant effect on the environment and is not exempt from CEQA. The inquiry would be circular and meaningless. Thus, the Legislature's entire premise for categorical exemptions would be gutted if the Court of Appeal's reasoning is adopted.

The second issue raised by this case is the appropriate standard of review for the unusual circumstances exception. The Court of Appeal held that the "fair argument" standard applies, holding that the exception is applicable whenever there is any credible evidence of a reasonable possibility of a significant effect, regardless of contrary evidence that no significant effect would occur. There is a long-standing split in authority on this issue, with some courts applying the fair argument standard, and others applying the more deferential substantial evidence standard, under which an agency may rely on evidence showing that there would be no significant impact.

The substantial evidence standard should apply to a determination by the public agency that the exception does not apply. It is well established that the substantial evidence standard applies to an agency's determination that a project is categorically exempt in the first instance. It is fundamentally inconsistent then to apply the non-deferential fair argument standard to the secondary question of whether that exemption determination should be negated because of alleged potential for significant effects, regardless of contrary evidence that no significant impact would occur. Moreover, applying these two standards to one project leads to unduly complicated and time-consuming proceedings for what are supposed to be minor and routine projects under CEQA. If the process for applying categorical exemptions is too cumbersome and uncertain, the Legislature's purpose in creating categorical exemptions is undermined.

The third issue for the Court's review is whether an agency, in deciding whether an EIR should be prepared for a project, must consider evidence that a potentially significant impact might result from an aspect of a project that is alleged, but is *neither proposed nor approved*. This holding by the Court of Appeal is clearly erroneous and contrary to existing law. Not surprisingly, CEQA clearly provides that the project that is reviewed under CEQA is the activity approved by the public agency, not a project variant conjured up by opponents.

Here, by contrast, the Appellate Court held that opinion evidence of potentially significant seismic impacts of allegedly required "side-hill fill" – which was not included in either the proposed or approved Project plans – required the City to prepare an EIR. This holding would allow opponents to defeat categorical exemptions simply by asserting their own misconception of a project and asserting that the misconception, rather than the actual project, may result in significant impacts. This cannot be the rule under CEQA.

Fourth, the Court of Appeal purported to find "unusual circumstances" in this case, but erred in its application of the exception. The Court of Appeal held that, as a matter of law, the size of the proposed home in this case was unusual. This holding is not only wrong, it is meaningless. Under the exception, the relevant inquiry is whether the project differs from the typically exempt project under the categorical exemption. The "new construction" exemption does not specify a size restriction for single family homes, although it does so for other types of development. Indeed, size in the abstract is meaningless. The same size house on a tiny lot clearly presents a different situation than the same size house on a large lot. Thus, public agencies rely on their legislatively adopted zoning and development standards to determine if a particular home is unusual, and courts should defer to this determination if it is

supported by substantial evidence. Allowing courts to declare what is "unusual" by way of judicial flat allows courts to improperly second-guess legislatively-adopted zoning requirements that are within the purview of local agencies. It also means that public agencies applying the exception have no guidance or certainty as to what is "unusual".

Moreover, the Court of Appeal failed to even analyze whether the Project was unusual compared to the typical project under the in-fill categorical exemption. Under that exemption, size is not a factor. Indeed, the same Court of Appeal recently held that a 5-story building with 98 residential units, 7,700 square feet of commercial space, and 114 parking spaces fell within the in-fill categorical exemption and that there was nothing about that project that differed from the typically-exempt in-fill project. Clearly, then, the size of one single-family home does not present anything unusual compared to the typically-exempt in-fill project.

Fifth, the Court of Appeal erred, in applying the unusual circumstances exception, in relying upon evidence that is legally incapable of showing potentially significant CEQA impacts. Specifically, the geotechnical comments of Appellants' expert showed, at most, the potential for an adverse impact of the existing environment on the Project. Under CEQA, such impacts of the environment on a project are not potentially significant "environmental impacts" that require review under CEQA. Therefore, Appellants' evidence is incapable – as a matter of law – of raising even a "reasonable possibility" that the Project would have a "significant effect on the environment due to unusual circumstances".

Finally, even if the Court were to uphold the decision, the Court of Appeal improperly ordered the trial court to issue a writ of mandate that directs the City to exercise its direction in a certain way, *i.e.*, by preparation of an EIR. This order violates CEQA, and specifically, section 21168.9(c), which provides that "[n]othing in this section authorizes a court to direct

any public agency to exercise its discretion in any particular way." A proper writ would require the City to set aside its finding of a categorical exemption, and comply with CEQA, but allow the City to exercise its discretion in the first instance as to how to comply with CEQA in response to the court's order.

In summary, by imposing the unusual circumstances exception even where alleged impacts are not tied to unusual circumstances; where those impacts are unrelated to the Project as proposed and approved; and where evidence shows those impacts would not occur, the Court of Appeal's Opinion would decimate agencies' use of categorical exemptions as intended by the Legislature. This Court should uphold the clear Legislative directive and intent in authorizing categorical exemptions for single-family homes, desperately needed urban in-fill projects, and the many other minor projects which the Resources Agency has already determined should not require further CEQA review. This Court should also clarify the standards applicable to the exception, so that CEQA functions smoothly and the process is not so cumbersome as to defeat the purpose of categorical exemptions. Finally, Respondents request that the Court reverse the Court of Appeal decision, and uphold the trial court determination denying the petition for writ of mandate.

FACTUAL AND PROCEDURAL BACKGROUND

The Project in this case is a permit to demolish existing structures and construct a two-story, 6,478 square foot, single-family home, with a 3,394 square foot garage, on a 29,714 square foot parcel at 2707 Rose Street in Berkeley's Single Family Residential District – Hillside Overlay

(the "Project").³ (1 AR 3.)⁴ The proposed home covers 16 percent of the property, leaving 84 percent in open space. (1 AR 127.)

On January 28, 2010, the Zoning Adjustment Board ("ZAB") held a public hearing and approved the Project. (1 AR 3, 144-146; 2 AR 516.) The City found that the Project was categorically exempt under Guidelines sections 15303(a) ("New Construction") and 15332 ("In-Fill Development Projects"). (1 AR 5, 30, 34, 40.) The City also found that the Project did not trigger any of the exceptions to the exemptions in Guidelines section 15300.2, and that the Project was exempt from further review under CEQA. (1 AR 5, 34, 40.) Appellants appealed the ZAB decision to the City Council. (1 AR 3, 193-206.) On April 27, 2010, the City Council affirmed the ZAB's decision and dismissed the appeal. (1 AR 3.)

Appellants filed this action in May 2010. (Appellants' Appendix ("AA"):1.) The Superior Court, the Honorable Frank Roesch presiding, held a hearing on the merits on December 2, 2010, and, in a detailed, 19-page decision, denied the Petition on December 30, 2010. (AA:140-159.) The trial court held that there was substantial evidence of a fair argument that the Project would cause significant environmental impacts. However, the trial court held that the Project did not trigger the significant effects exception in Guidelines section 15300.2(c), because the possible significant impacts were not due to "unusual circumstances".

³ Appellants opposed the demolition of the existing structures, arguing that they were historical resources. The Court of Appeal denied Appellants' petition for writ of supersedeas, and the Kapors demolished the existing structures. Thus, the only remaining issues relate to the construction of the proposed single-family home.

⁴ Cites to "AR" are to the Administrative Record.

The Court of Appeal issued its decision, certified for publication, on February 15, 2012. The Court of Appeal disagreed with the trial court's use of the two-step inquiry and held:

Where there is substantial evidence that proposed activity may have an effect on the environment, an agency is precluded from applying a categorical exemption. (Wildlife Alive, supra, 18 Cal.3d at pp. 205-206.) The trial court concluded that the relevant exception did not apply because it found no "unusual circumstances" present; however, the fact that proposed activity may have an effect on the environment is itself an unusual circumstance, because such action would not fall "within a class of activities that does not normally threaten the environment," and thus should be subject to further environmental review. ([Azusa Land Reclamation Co. v. Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster (1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 1165], at p. 1206.) (Opinion, 13, italics by court.)

In support of this conclusion, the Court of Appeal cited to this Court's decision in *Wildlife Alive v. Chickering* (1976) 18 Cal.3d 190 ("*Wildlife Alive*"). (Opinion, 11.) The Court of Appeal acknowledged that courts have interpreted the unusual circumstances exception as requiring two separate inquiries, the first being whether the Project presents unusual circumstances. (Opinion, 12.) The Court of Appeal also acknowledged that the trial court's approach was consistent with the two-step approach applied in those cases. (*Id.* at 13.) However, the Court of Appeal tried to distinguish those cases and argue that they "did not actually employ such a two-step procedure" but instead "'streamlined' [their] approach by 'proceeding directly to the question of whether, applying the fair argument standard, there is a reasonable possibility of a significant effect on the environment due to any purported unusual circumstances." (*Ibid*, citation omitted.)

The Court of Appeal further acknowledged "that it may be helpful to analyze the applicability of the unusual circumstances exception as part of a

two-step inquiry . . ." (*Id.* at 15.) However, the Court of Appeal concluded, "once it is determined that a proposed activity may have a significant effect on the environment, a reviewing agency is precluded from applying a categorical exemption to the activity." (*Ibid.*)

The Court of Appeal held that the fair argument standard applied to the agency's determination under Guidelines section 15300.2(c). (Opinion, 16.) The Court of Appeal then purported to apply the two-step inquiry to the facts of this case, holding that the proposed single-family residence was unusual based on its size. (Opinion, 17.) In making this determination, the Court of Appeal held that whether a circumstance is unusual is judged relative to the typically exempt project, as opposed to the typical circumstances in a particular neighborhood. (*Id.* at 17-18.)

Finally, the Court of Appeal found that there was substantial evidence of a fair argument that the Project would result in significant geotechnical impacts to construction fill for the Project. (Opinion, 18.) However, the Court of Appeal did not determine that any significant environmental effects would result from the "unusual circumstance" of the Project's size. Rather, the Court accepted the opponents' assertion that the Project would require construction fill that was not proposed by the applicant and was, therefore, not permitted as part of the Project approved by the City. (*Ibid.*) It was the alleged potentially significant impacts of "seismic lurching" to this supposedly required construction fill which the Court found to require preparation of an EIR. (*Ibid.*)

Respondents sought a rehearing in the Court of Appeal, which was denied. The Opinion was modified (without any change in judgment) on March 7, 2012. This Court granted the City's and the Kapors' timely petition for review.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

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