Introduction

Long ago, the City of Berkeley enacted protections to the design and
scale of new development within its historic and architecturally renowned
neighborhoods. This appeal challenges four discretionary use permits
sought for a 10,000 square-foot home/10-car garage in one just such area
high in the Berkeley hills. The building was approved via “categorical
exemption” from environmental review. That is, without any.

The Alameda County Superior Court and the First District Court of
Appeal agree with the public-interest appellants that the house proposed on
Rose Street, at a scale akin to a small office building, may have significant
impacts. The unanimous opinion authored by the Honorable Justice Patricia
Sepulveda applied unequivocal provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act to the facts of this case and required the preparation of an EIR.

The judgment should be affirmed. Single-family homes should and
do normally qualify for categorical exemptions from CEQA even when
more than routine building permits are required. But any proposed
categorical exemption is subordinate to an overriding legislative mandate:
a fair argument of potentially significant environmental impacts always
triggers the favored EIR process.

That is the case here, and a peremptory writ should issue on remand.



Summary of Argument

CEQA requires discretionary projects with potentially significant
environmental impacts to be analyzed within a public EIR process. (Pub.
Resources Code, §§ 21082.2 subd.(d), 21100 subd.(a), 21151 subd.(a).) The
goal is for public agencies to make informed land use decisions that reduce
adverse environmental effects to the extent feasible. (/d., §§ 21002, 21151.)
Many of this Court’s landmark decisions that have enforced CEQA’s
mandates also eloquently laud the salutary benefits of the EIR process.

EIRs are practical. They assist our elected decision-makers and
“demonstrate to an apprehensive citizenry that the agency has in fact
analyzed and considered the ecological implications of its action.” (No O,
Inc. v. City of Los Angeles (1974) 13 Cal.3d 68, p. 86.)

That being said, many thousands of routine projects statewide have
no significant environmental effects, and an EIR serves no purpose when
that is apparent at the outset. Categorical exemptions allow streamlined
approvals of “run-of-the-mill” projects that warrant neither study nor
mitigation. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21084 subd.(a); Fairbank v. City of
Mill Valley (1999) 75 Cal.App.4™ 1243, pp. 1260-1261.) As recognized by
this Court, “[a] categorically exempt project is not subject to CEQA.”

(Tomlinson v. County of Alameda (2012) 54 Cal.4™ 281, p. 286.)



But the EIR remains “the heart of CEQA.” (Laurel Heights
Improvement Association v. Regents of the University of California (1993)
6 Cal.4™ 1112, p. 1123.) CEQA and its Guidelines “embody California’s
strong policy of protecting the environment.” (Tomlinson v. County of
Alameda, supra, 54 Cal 4™ 281, p. 286.) Proposed categorical exemptions
must harmonize with CEQA’s low-threshold EIR requirement, consistently
affirmed in scores of California cases for over four decades.

Here, both the Superior Court and the Court of Appeal found
substantial evidence in the administrative record supporting appellants’
contentions that the proposed Kapor mansion — to be anchored into a steep
slope via massive excavation and fill next to an aging, cracked concrete
overpass; in a landslide hazard zone; on a narrow, dead-end, one-lane
roadway; out of scale with its famed walking-tour neighborhood of small
architectural treasures — may have significant environmental impacts.'

Credible expert evidence indicates that the building’s large mass and
its siting atop a 27-foot foundation/ plinth built into the steep hillside would
require extraordinary amounts of earthwork and strip the site of mature
trees. It would rise five stories above grade on the site’s downhill [Shasta

Road] side, with its roof looming almost eight stories (78 feet) over the



road. Most of the historic homes lining the winding roads in the
neighborhood are less than a quarter of its size.

The City concedes that “because of steep topography” the project
requires special use permits. The record highlights geotechnical impacts,
traffic problems during the fourteen months of construction to be staged
off-site, adverse impacts on public views, and General Plan inconsistencies.

No reported case has ever upheld a categorical exemption when a
record contains substantial evidence of significant environmental impacts.
(Post, p. 57.) For this Court to do so, as urged by the City, would be
inconsistent with all prior case law as well as with CEQA’s statututory and
regulatory foundations and its salutary purposes.

In overturning the categorical exemption, the Court of Appeal relied
on the expert opinions of Lawrence B. Karp, a geotechnical engineer and
licensed architect with fifty years of Bay Area experience. Dr. Karp
prepared an independent on-site engineering study. His fact-based technical
report explained how the proposed mansion in the context of its steep site
“... is likely to have very significant environmental impacts not only during
construction, but in service ...” (2 Administrative Record (AR) 449, 530.)

The City and Real Parties In Interest Mitchell Kapor and Freada

!'Facts in the Introduction and Summary are cited to the record post.



Kapor-Klein (collectively, the City) have a field day in their opening brief
mischaracterizing Dr. Karp’s geotechnical findings, proclaiming that he
addressed impacts of a project “neither proposed nor approved.” (City
Brief, passim, italics in original.) The City argues both that Dr. Karp
misunderstood the project plans and that the plans changed after his review.

Saying so, even repeatedly, does not make it true. Dr. Karp and the
Kapors’ experts offered conflicting opinions about potential geotechnical
impacts and the amount of cutting and filling required to build the house
and garage on the steep slopes of the site. The City Council did not resolve
or address the environmental issues in any way. And the project plans did
not change at all in the months between project application and approval.

Fortunately, in a CEQA mandamus action the administrative record
easily refutes factual misrepresentations. The four-volume record
documents Dr. Karp’s expert independent analysis of project impacts. The
approved project includes only a conceptual grading plan (see copy of plan,
post, p. 82), with a final plan defining excavation and fill limits scheduled
for future submittal to City staff without any CEQA process, public review,
or further notice to concerned residents. (1 AR 10-12.)

As to the import of the “Significant Effects Exception” to

categorical exemptions codified in the CEQA Guidelines [Cal.Code Regs



§§ 15000 et seq.], section 15300.2 subdivision (c) [“A categorical
exemption shall not be used for an activity where there is a reasonable
possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the environment
due to unusual circumstances”], the CEQA statutes and legislative and rule-
making files confirm that the exception disallows categorical exemption for
any project that may have significant environmental impacts.

In recent years some courts have inquired as a separate issue of law
whether a project being considered for the Significant Effects Exception is
substantially different from other routine projects in its class: in other
words, whether there are “unusual circumstances.” While the Kapor project
would have impacts that are indeed unusual for a single-family home, such
an inquiry is inconsistent with the mandates of the Public Resources Code
and involves unnecessarily complex agency and judicial review.

Simply stated, the documented presence of a potential environmental
effect has always defeated a categorical exemption. (Pub. Resources Code,
§§ 21082.2 subdivision (d), 21151.) Unusual circumstances should not be
“read out” of the Guideline exception, but are instead inherent in a project
named in a categorical exemption class that nonetheless has potentially
significant impacts. (Communities for a Better Environment v. California

Resources Agency (2002) 103 Cal.App.4th 98, p. 129.)



The categorical exemption process remains of great utility. While
the Public Resources Code emphatically disallows exemption when a
project may have significant impacts, public agencies’ quick and
convenient approval of exempt projects has been and will continue to be
widely used for scores of projects statewide. Affirming the First District
judgment in this appeal will uphold the integrity of CEQA and will not lead
to problems in the application of categorical exemptions, as claimed by the
City and queuing amici. Their “sky is falling” mantra is puerile, as is the
insistence that any scrutiny of such exemptions is somehow unfair.

Projects within a defined categorical exemption class do not receive
an automatic free pass from CEQA. The point of each category is to
streamline the approval of projects fairly assumed to be of minor effect.
Exemptions dissolve upon evidence of a specific project’s potentially
significant environmental impacts. Such has always been required by
Public Resources Code section 21082.2 and decades of judicial precedent.
And that is the whole point of the “Significant Impacts Exception.”

Here, the low threshold for EIR preparation is amply met under the
facts in the certified administrative record, and the judgment should be
affirmed. After an EIR process, the Kapors’ home can be built on Rose

Street with its environmental impacts analyzed and mitigated.



Statement of Facts

The City’s factual summary is unusually short. (City Brief, pp. 8-9.)
Even though a few additional facts appear within its legal arguments, the
opening brief fails to address much of the relevant evidence. Perhaps this is
because the material facts so strongly favor appellants’ case.

Philanthropists Mitchell Kapor and Freada Kapor-Klein propose to
build a 3-level, single-family dwelling of almost 10,000 square feet,
including underground parking for 10 cars, at 2707 Rose Street in the
Berkeley hills. (1 AR 48-64.)* The City required conditional use permits
for exceptions to the height limit and reduction of setback, “warranted
because of steep topography.” (1 AR 6, italics added.) Nonetheless, the
project was treated as categorically exempt from CEQA under the classes
for in-fill housing and single-family homes. (1 AR 2, 30, 40.)

The Berkeley Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) held a hearing in
January 2010 to consider the project’s four discretionary use permits:

» Demolition of an existing dwelling unit

=  Construction of a dwelling

> While the City quotes the Kapors’ architect’s statement that the
home would cover 16% of the property, leaving 84 % in open space (City
Brief, p. 9; 1 AR 127), the hardscape, terraces etc. are not equivalent to
open space. (E.g., 1 AR 289.)



* Permitting an increased average height

* Permitting a setback reduction

(1 AR 30.)

Area residents raised fact-based environmental concerns relating to
the requested use permits. (1 AR 70-77, 81-82, 85, 87, 97, 99, 120-124; 2
AR 489-491, 495-506.) Many objected to the City’s failures to analyze
seismic stability, landslide issues, impacts of massive excavation, and tree
removal (1 AR 100, 117, 196, 199); accurately measure proposed height,
visibility, and applicable setbacks (1 AR 82, 89, 94, 96, 100, 104, 111,
119); address evident inconsistencies in site and grading drawings (1 AR
288-289); assess pre- and post-construction traffic impacts (1 AR 81, 85,
88, 91-92, 97); analyze inconsistencies with the Berkeley General Plan,
ordinances, and policies (1 AR 74, 92, 99-100, 105, 111-119); research or
describe the architectural and historic significance of neighborhood
residences (1 AR 105); consider project visibility, including by use of story
poles (1 AR 100, 105, 117); or to assess the project’s neighborhood
compatibility. (1 AR 71-75, 81-82, 89, 94-97, 99, 103-105, 111-119, 124.)

Despite the extensive comments received in a very short time period,
ZAB members refused to continue the hearing or to honor the City’s

customary practice of requiring story poles to assess visual impacts. (1 AR



146.) The permits were approved without environmental review, based on a
categorical exemption and with conditions imposed to mitigate

environmental impacts. (1 AR 163-168.)

2707 Rose Street Zoning Submittal (1 AR 169.)

Co-appellant Susan Nunes Fadley appealed the ZAB project
approvals to the Berkeley City Council on behalf of herself and 33 others
who signed the appeal. (1 AR 186-192.) Substantial documentation that
included letters and reports was submitted to the City Council in support of
the appeal. (1 AR 193-292; 4 AR 941-955.)

The appeal submitted expert reports from Lawrence B. Karp, a
geotechnical engineer with a doctorate in civil engineeriﬁg from U.C.

Berkeley as well as other advanced degrees, who taught foundation

10



engineering at U.C. Berkeley for fourteen years and at Stanford University
for three years, and whose work experience includes over fifty years of
design and construction in Berkeley. (4 AR 1089.)

Dr. Karp detailed the basis for his professional opinions regarding
potentially significant environmental impacts that would result from the
Kapor project’s unstudied massive grading, filling, and foundations. Based
on his review, Dr. Karp found significant potential for the seismic lurching
of hillside fills and for landslides resulting from grading necessary to
achieve grade and structure elevations. (2 AR 448-449; 4 AR 1085-1089.)

During the appeal proceedings, the City was provided with evidence
that categorical exemption from CEQA was unlawful based on potentially
significant impacts relating to the demolition of a likely historic resource;’
aesthetic impacts on public views; neighborhood incompatibility based on
the mass, scale, and perceived institutional design of the proposed building;
traffic impacts relating to construction; massive unstudied excavation of

steep hillsides and creation of large retaining walls; material inconsistencies

3 Early in the appellate proceedings, the Court of Appeal denied
appellants’ supersedeas petition. The Kapors then demolished the 1917
Craftsman cottage on the site that had been a subject of discussion at the
City and at the trial court. The cottage is no longer at issue, as the City
correctly notes. (City Brief, p. 9, n.3.)

11



with City land use plans and policies adopted for environmental protection;
the unusual size of the house out of scale with the neighborhood and
historic character; and removal of many mature trees. (2 AR 525-532.) The
appeal sought a CEQA process to analyze a revised project consistent with
the City’s ordinances and plans. (2 AR 529, 532.)

Appellants submitted a written response to the City staff’s report on
the appeal. (2 AR 436-462.) The City Council considered the appeal at a
public meeting in April 2010. (2 AR 523-594.) City staff provided a
supplemental report minutes before the meeting. (2 AR 463-468, 524.)
The City Council allowed a 10-minute presentation by appellants, timed to
the second by the mayor, during which time the appellants’ attorney and
Dr. Karp each spoke. There was an equally-timed 10-minute presentation
made on behalf of the Kapors. (2 AR 524-541.)

Appellants’ request for a public hearing was denied. (2 AR 533.)
The Councilchambers were packed with concerned residents who supported
the appeal but who were not allowed to testify. The mayor also denied a
request by City Councilmember Jesse Arreguin to ask questions of
Landmark Preservation Commission representative Ann Wagley, who rose

to speak on behalf of that Commission and was sent back to her seat. (2 AR

12



541-542 [“We are not holding a public hearing.”].)"

While the Kapors® lawyer Rena Rickles lauded Dr. Karp’s “excellent
credentials,” she contended that he had misread the architectural plans.

(2 AR 530-531.) In response, Dr. Karp testified to the City Council that he
had reviewed recent letters written by the Kapors’ engineers that surmised
that he had misread the plans, and that they were mistaken. He explained
that he had reviewed all project materials and plans and had personally
visited the project site, and that his opinions were based on his independent
creation of a section drawing that showed conflicts between grades and
retaining walls. He confirmed his independent evaluation and verified his
opinion. (2 AR 530-533;4 AR 1089.)

Before voting, City Councilmembers explained their opinions about
the project, but none addressed the geotechnical issues or the categorical
exemption. (2 AR 541-591.) The Council did not at any time question
either Dr. Karp’s expert opinions or his personal or professional credibility.
(2 AR 548-592.) It is wholly untrue, as proclaimed by the City, that the
City Council in any way “rejected” Dr. Karp’s assessment of potential
geotechnical impacts relating to excavation and fill. (City Brief, p. 3.) The

Council majority ignored it and denied the appeal [6-2-1]. (2 AR 591.)

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